User Manual Getting Started with I-CUBE-ALIYUN IoT Cloud Software expansion for STM32Cube

Introduction

This user manual describes the content of the STM32Cube software expansion package for the Aliyun IoT platform.

The Aliyun IoT cloud software expansion package (I-CUBE-ALIYUN) for STM32Cube provides application examples that connect STMicroelectronics boards to the Aliyun IoT platform. It uses the Aliyun linkkit-embedded SDK which is compiled and running on the STM32 device.

I-CUBE-ALIYUN runs on the NUCLEO-L476RG board.

Implementation examples are included for device-to-cloud telemetry reporting, cloud-todevice messages for notifications to the connected devices.

I-CUBE-ALIYUN offers the following features:

• Ready to run firmware example using Wi-Fi[®] to support quick evaluation and development of device applications connect to Aliyun IoT platform.

- Board configuration interface
- Wi-Fi[®] connection
- Connection to the Aliyun IoT platform
- The sensor expansion board X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 measures and report any one of the following values:
- Temperature
- Humidity
- Pressure
- 3D Accelerometer data
- 3D Gyroscope data
- 3D Magnetometer data
- STM32 Temperature data



Contents

1	Gen	eral information	5
2	Aliyu	un IoT platform	6
3	Pack	kage description	7
	3.1	General description	7
	3.2	Architecture	9
	3.3	Folder structure	
	3.4	X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 board sensors	
	3.5	EXT-EMW3080 Wi-Fi® expansion board	
	3.6	Reset push-button (black)	
	3.7	User push-button (blue)	
	3.8	User LED	
4	Hard	dware and software environment setup	13
5	Inter	racting with the boards	14
6	Appl	lication example	16
	6.1	Application description	
	6.2	Aliyun IoT account creation	
	6.3	Device creation on the Aliyun IoT platform	
	6.4	Application build and flash	
	6.5	Application first launch	
	6.6	Application runtime	
7	Freq	uently asked questions	22
8	Revi	sion history	23

List of tables

Table 1. List of acronyms	5
Table 2. Document revision history	. 23

List of figures

Figure 1. Aliyun IoT cloud ecosystem	6
Figure 2. NUCLEO-L476RG board	7
Figure 3. X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 board	7
Figure 4. I-CUBE-ALIYUN software architecture	. 10
Figure 5. Project file structure	. 11
Figure 6. Hardware and software setup environment	. 13
Figure 7. Terminal Setup	. 14
Figure 8. Serial port setup	. 15
Figure 9. Aliyun IoT account creation	. 16
Figure 10. Device creation	. 17
Figure 11. Device provisioning	. 17
Figure 12. Device topic update	. 18
Figure 13. Complete assembled board	. 18
Figure 14. WiFi provisioning	. 19
Figure 15. WiFi credential update	. 19
Figure 16. Device connect to Aliyun IoT platform	. 19
Figure 17. Device to cloud message	. 20
Figure 18. Aliyun IoT platform console – device status	. 20
Figure 19. Aliyun IoT platform console – upstream data	. 21
Figure 20. Aliyun IoT platform console – downstream data	. 21
Figure 21. Pop-up when the IAR [™] IDE version is not compatible with the one used for I-CUBE-ALIYUN	. 22

1 General information

The I-CUBE-ALIYUN package for the Aliyun IoT platform runs on STM32 32-bit microcontrollers based on the Arm® Cortex®-M processor.

arm

Table 1 presents the definition of acronyms that are relevant for a better understanding of this document.

Term	Definition
API	Application programming interface
BSP	Board support package
CA	Certification authority
DHCP	Dynamic host configuration protocol
DNS	Domain name server
HAL	Hardware abstraction layer
IDE	Integrated development environment
loT	Internet of things
IP	Internet protocol
LED	Light-emitting diode
SDK	Software development kit
RTC	Real-time clock
UART	Universal asynchronous receiver/transmitter

Table 1. List of acronyms

2 Aliyun IoT platform

This chapter introduces the Aliyun IoT platform.

The I-CUBE-ALIYUN package implements the Aliyun linkkit-embedded SDK which allows the board to securely connect to the Aliyun IoT platform.

A user can connect to the cloud with a smartphone or personal computer and have access to the information provided by the board at any time and from any location.

Figure 1 presents the Aliyun IoT cloud ecosystem targeted by the I-CUBE-ALIYUN package.



Figure 1. Aliyun IoT cloud ecosystem

3 Package description

This chapter details the I-CUBE-ALIYUN package content and the way to use it.

3.1 General description

The I-CUBE-ALIYUN package provides an Aliyun linkkit-embedded stack middleware for STM32 microcontrollers.

It is built to run on the NUCLEO-L476RG board and connects to the Internet through the EXT-EMW3080 Wi-Fi[®] network interface:

• EXT-EMW3080 supports Wi-Fi[®] connectivity with an on-board Mxchip[®] WiFi module.



Figure 2. NUCLEO-L476RG board

Figure 3. X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 board



The package is split into the following software components:

- linkkit-embedded SDK for connecting to Aliyun IoT platform.
- Wi-Fi[®] drivers
- Sensor drivers for the X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 board
- STM32L4 Series HAL
- Aliyun application examples

The software is provided as a zip archive containing source code. The following integrated development environments are supported:

- IAR Embedded Workbench[®] for Arm[®] (EWARM)
- Keil[®] Microcontroller Development Kit (MDK-ARM)
- System Workbench for STM32

Note: refer to the release note available in the package root folder for information about the IDE versions supported.

3.2 Architecture

This section describes the software components of the I-CUBE-ALIYUN package.

The I-CUBE-ALIYUN software is an expansion for the STM32Cube. Its main features and characteristics are:

• Fully compliant with STM32Cube architecture

• Expands STM32Cube in order to enable the development of applications accessing and using the Aliyun IoT cloud platform

Based on the STM32CubeHAL, which is the hardware abstraction layer for STM32 microcontrollers

The software components used by the application software to access and use the Aliyun IoT cloud platform are the following:

1. STM32Cube HAL

The HAL driver layer provides a generic multi-instance simple set of APIs (application programming interfaces) to interact with the upper layers (application, libraries and stacks).

It is composed of generic and extension APIs. It is directly built around a generic architecture and allows the layers that are built upon, such as the middleware layer, to implement their functionalities without dependencies on the specific hardware configuration for a given microcontroller unit (MCU).

This structure improves the library code reusability and guarantees an easy portability onto other devices.

2. Board support package (BSP)

The software package needs to support the peripherals on the STM32 boards apart from the MCU. This software is included in the board support package (BSP). This is a limited set of APIs which provides a programming interface for certain board specific peripherals such as the LED and the user button.

- 3. Aliyun linkkit-embedded software development kit (SDK)
- 4. MbedTLS

5. *Figure 4* outlines I-CUBE-ALIYUN software architecture.



Figure 4. I-CUBE-ALIYUN software architecture

3.3 Folder structure

Figure 5 presents the folder structure of the I-CUBE-ALIYUN package.



Figure 5. Project file structure

3.4 X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 board sensors

The sensors that are present on the board that can be used by the sample application are:

- Capacitive digital sensor for relative humidity and temperature (HTS221)
- High-performance 3-axis magnetometer (LIS303AGR)
- 3D accelerometer and 3D gyroscope (LSM6DSL)
- 260-1260 hPa absolute digital output barometer (LPS22HB)

For the application example, the internal temperature sensor data of STM32L is also sent to the cloud.

3.5 EXT-EMW3080 Wi-Fi® expansion board

The Wi-Fi[®] software is split over Wi-Fi abstraction, module specific high level API and module specific low level I/O operation.

The Mxchip Wi-Fi module AT firmware version is "basic_at_v2.0.9".

3.6 Reset push-button (black)

The reset push-button (black) is used to reset the board at any time. This action makes the board reboot.

3.7 User push-button (blue)

The user push-button (blue) is used in the following cases:

• To configure the Wi-Fi[®] access point credentials. This can be done from the time the board starts up and up to two seconds after that.

The application configures and manages the user button via the board support package (BSP) functions. The BSP functions are in the Drivers\BSP\
board name> directory.

When using the BSP button functions with the BUTTON_USER value, the application does not take into account the way this button is connected from a hardware standpoint for a given platform. The mapping is handled by the BSP.

3.8 User LED

The configuration of the user LED that is used by the applications is done via the board support package (BSP) functions.

The BSP functions are under the Drivers\BSP\<board name> directory.

Using the BSP button functions with the LED_GREEN value, the application does not take into account the way the LED is mapped for a given platform. The mapping is handled by the BSP.

The behavior On/Off of user LED has been selected to be used to indicate the desired LED state during application run time.

4 Hardware and software environment setup

To set up the hardware and software environment, the supported board must be plugged into a personal computer via a USB cable. This connection with the PC allows the user to:

- Flash the board
- Store the Wi-Fi[®] AP credentials
- · Interact with the board via a UART console
- Debug

The NUCLEO-L476RG must be connected to a Wi-Fi[®] access point as illustrated in *Figure 6*.

Figure 6. Hardware and software setup environment



The prerequisites for running the examples are:

• A Wi-Fi[®] access point, with a transparent Internet connectivity meaning that neither a proxy, nor a firewall are blocking the outgoing traffic. It has to run a DHCP server delivering the IP and DNS configuration to the board.

• A development PC for building the application, programming through ST-Link, and running the terminal console.

• An Aliyun account. Once registered a Product Key, Device Name and Device Secret for Aliyun IoT platform will be provided.

• To register and create an account, go to http://iot.console.aliyun.com

5 Interacting with the boards

A serial terminal is required to:

- · Configure the board
- Display locally the sent/received Aliyun IoT device-to-cloud/cloud-to-device messages

The example in this document is illustrated with the use of Tera Term. Any other similar tool can be used instead.

• Determine the STM32 ST-LINK Virtual COM port used on the PC for the Discovery board. On a Windows[®] PC, open the Device Manager.

• Open a virtual terminal on the PC and connect it to the above virtual COM port.

Note: The information provided below in this chapter can be used to configure the UART terminal as an alternative to using the Tera Term initialization script.

Terminal setup is illustrated in *Figure 7*, which shows the terminal setup and the Newline recommended parameters.

The virtual terminal New-line transmit configuration must be set to LineFeed (\n or LF) in order to allow copy-paste from UNIX type text files. The Local echo option makes copy- paste visible on the console.

Tera Term: Terminal setup	
Terminal size	New-line Receive: AUTO - Transmit: LF - Cancel
Auto window resize	✓ Local echo Auto switch (VT<->TEK)
Coding (receive) UTF-8 👻	Coding (transmit) UTF-8 v
locale: american	CodePage: 65001

Figure 7. Terminal Setup

The serial port must be configured with:

- COM port number
- 115200 baud rate
- 8-bit data
- Parity none
- 1 stop bit
- No flow control

Serial port setup is illustrated in *Figure 8*.

Figure 8. Serial port setup

115200 -	
115200	
8 bit 🗸	Cance
none 🔻	•
1 bit 🔹	, Help
none 🔻	•
	8 bit

Once the UART terminal and the serial port are set up, press the board reset button (black). Follow the indications on the UART terminal to upload Wi-Fi[®] provisioning data. Those data remain in Flash and are reused the next time.

6 Application example

This section introduces how to register and log on the Aliyun IoT platform, and how to use the Aliyun sample application from the I-CUBE-ALIYUN package.

6.1 Application description

The Aliyun sample application illustrates the various way for a device to interact with the Aliyun IoT platform, using the Aliyun linkkit-embedded SDK on the device.

The application connects to the Aliyun IoT platform thanks to the credential provided by the user in the code.

6.2 Aliyun IoT account creation

To register and create an account, go to: http://iot.console.aliyun.com

(こ) 阿里云 - 上云就上阿里云 × ← → C □ https://help.a	liyun.com/product/3	0520.html						
- CJNHED 最新活动 产品 解決 精选	方案 定价 日	ET大脑	REFIE	安全	云市场	支持与服务	合作伙伴	
Artificial Intelligence 人工智能	云服务 物联用平台 HOT 智联车管理云平台 (公卿中)		设备服务 Alios Things	8		软硬一体化应用 魔笔 云说开	行业解决方案 智能城市解决方案 智能单品解决方案
云计算基础 IoT 物联网	TSDB 时间序列数据 物联网络 广域物联建入服务	*		D ² ID ² -SIM TEE安全要	¥		生态 物研网市场 ICA物研网标准联盟	智能制造解决方案 智能园区解决方案 智能农业解决方案 智能肉业解决方案
Data Technology 大数据 Security	边缘服务 物联网边缘计算(公	剩中) NEW		1514			NUMPER TRANSPORT	
交主 Enterprise Applications 企业应用								

Figure 9. Aliyun IoT account creation

6.3 Device creation on the Aliyun IoT platform

Once an account has been created:

- 1. Create a new product, get Product Key.
- 2. Create a new device, get Device Name and Device Secret.
- 3. Create a new topic \$(PRODECT_KEY)/\$(DEVICE_NAME)/data, set the permission as: device is capable of publishing and subscribing.
- 4. Save the Product Key, Device Name, Device Secret for future device provisioning use.

Figure 10. Device creation

enteraliti imili	4월35 v 📕 467 (上海) v		11	9 A #8 I9	解症 企业 支	动物的 网络中文
的 就用节目						
rawa	产品管理					
2890	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
ange a						
une 🗭	产品列表		(x)			C
THES	FEEK: BEATHROOM	0.0.0				ARE
12265	#B50	* E T A C		0.09 <u>0</u> 2900	潮放时间	JR/F
PEX	-	ABSR:		2 4 1	2015/04/18	75 05
		GE(39)*558	0		1549.47	
		· 1.6月型:		月 天 1	2018/09/01 15:12:13	8¥ 8¥
		PREE:			1 6-55	电动型等: 10
		1282.7.4 1010.00				
			0700			
			500 B			

6.4 Application build and flash

Caution: Before opening the project with any tool chain, make sure that the folder installation path is not too deep since the tool chain may report errors after the build otherwise.

Enter the Product Key, Device Name and Device Secret at the specified position in mqtt_example.c which is located at "\Projects\STM32L476RG-Nucleo\Src"

Project - sen embedded weikberch s	10: 4001201	0.9
ile fot yow Bajed Flink]	[osp Biagon Bab	
DODA B SOC		
istav	* 1 X mine net number v	
	and advantage of	
be alyun	•	
65	 ADDIDENCE OF UTERWIJS() ANDIDE IN ADT WE OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SUFFWARE, 	
i-rehe-alian - i-rehe-ali	Stell IF Avised of the Addition of Social Addition	
E Accirction		
LIZ POVIDA		
Lt Shared	Attention contractor	
	tinclose candib.bo	
LDDates	finding corrigably	
L D Danies	disclose continol.ho	
La Douine		
A Drest overcle c	finclude "iot_import.h"	
La Dresser data c	<pre>#include "ioc_export.h"</pre>	
All Date 20 fee had more a	<pre>#include "lite-log.h"</pre>	
Lin Date 234 at a	finitude "wifi.h"	
LD Durato	<pre>#include "sensure_data.h"</pre>	
La Swa	+intlude "mag.h"	
	finited data.h"	
T BALANCES	<pre>#include "ior_flash_config.h"</pre>	
D Contrat		
-B Copy	AIRCIDS AURITAR OFFICE	
	vertile isvite_source	
	// Insee are pre-delined toplos	
	edetine toric grante "/"HECOIC BEL"/"LETIC BARE" Aposte"	
	HORIZO UNIL DOCK // MADDEL AT / LEVILE AME / ADDRS/ KEDD	
	Version Versional / Provestignal / Providence Version Version	
	These second in the second second	
	Address and The Max (1968)	
	Addition and party desired where sold	
	static void inclient:	
	static int must client example (void);	
	static void event handle mgtt(woid 'ponnext, woid 'pollent, iotx mgtt event mag pt mag);	
	static void _demo_message_arrive(void *poontest, void *polient, intx_mutt_event_mag.pt mag);	
	static void event haudie moti (void "printext, woid "printext, ioix_moti event_mag_bt mag)	
	muches"s barnes"to = (muches"sumbine	
	serfett cebr run be cebr run = (corfett run bring-omd)	
	ad the instrument treat 1	
	and the set of the set	
	men infollandefined event occur. "It	
	hreat i	
	CAMP JOIN NET EVENT DISCONNECT:	
	mag_info ("MQTT disconnect.");	
	break;	
	case 10TX_MCT_EVENT_RECONDECT:	
	mag_info("%217 recomment."):	
	hreat:	

Figure 11. Device provisioning

Figure 12. Device topic update

	5 6		
had the second sec		man additional x	
beralgian		(/ These are encoded) and having	
le z	• •	tighter topic under "/"PROPERT NEW"/under"	
i-cube-aliyun - i-cube-ali	*	#define TOPIC KINCH "/"PRODUCT NET"/"DEVICE HAME"/uplate/euror"	
D Application		+OFTIG TOFIC_DET "/"FROTOCT_FEY"/"DEVICE_NAME"/get"	
		<pre>#osfile ToFIC_DATA "/"FRODOCT_SET"/"DEVICE_NAME"/Gate"</pre>	
		Address MAR THE MARK CONTRACTOR	
- B - Critico		The first NAX BOTT HINLING COUNT ACCO	
L m D adam			
Le Dance		static void "polients	
Hen El mein o		static int mpti_client_example(void);	
-m Creat exemple c		static void event_handle_mptt(void *pointext, void *pollent, intx_mptt_event_mag_pt_mag))	
-G E sensors data.c		atatic void _demo_message_arrive(void *pcontext, void *pclient, iotx_mqtt_event_mag_pt mag);	
-8 Stm32Hochel_msp.c			
Htt Stm32Hox_ito		And the sensitive density of the sense of th	
Lop Durate		HINTER PRACTICE AND A CONTRACT TO AND A STATE	
		iots must topic info pt topic info = (lots must topic info pt)mmg-ymmg;	
8 M Drivers			
1) - Middlewones		E awitch (mag-)event_type) (
a Coltra		CARGE IOTX_NQTT_EVENT_UNDEF:	
		mag_info("indefined event order."))	
		Dreak)	
		CAME TATE WATE FURTH DISCONDENT:	
		man info/PMOTE disconnect "11	
		Lowesh .	
		case IOTS_HQTT_EVENT_RECONSECT:	
		mag_info("HgTT recomment.");	
		(PRA)	
		CARE LOTS MUST FORM STREET STOTES	
		mag info("subscribe success, pecket-id=%u", (unsimed int)pecket id);	
		break:	
		came IOTK_MQTT_EVENT_STDCRIBE_TIMEOUT:	
		msg_info("subscribe wait ack timeout, packet-id=ku", (unsigned int)packet_id);	
		break	
		was been average and a second second second to be a second second to be	
		Dreak!	
		came IOTX_NOT7_EVENT_UNSUDCRIBE_SUCCESS:	
		msg_info("unsubscribe success, packet-id=tu", (unsigned int)packet_id);	
		break:	
		esse tota suit event objective insection	
		tenti destative tisto, post-terto, (designe int)post-ter)	
		case IOTE NOTT EVENT UNFUECTION SACKI	
		mag_info("unwidecribe mack, packet-id=%u", (unsigned int)packet_id);	
		break:	
		NAME TOTA MOTT FIRST AND THE STOCKER.	

Open and build the project with one of the supported development tool chains (see the release note for detailed information about the version requirements).

Program the firmware on the STM32 board: you can copy (or drag and drop) the generated bin file to the USB mass storage location created when you plug the STM32 board to your PC.

Alternatively, you can program the STM32 board directly through one of the supported development tool chains.

6.5 Application first launch

1. As the UART on Arduino connector for WiFi module is used by ST-Link. We need the wiring from WiFi Rx pin to Nucleo Morpho header CN10 pin 33 and WiFi Tx pin to Nucleo Morpho header CN10 pin 21.



Figure 13. Complete assembled board

2. The board must be connected to a PC through USB (ST-LINK USB port). Open the console through a serial terminal emulator (such as Tera Term), select the ST-

LINK COM port of the board, and configure it with:

- 8N1, 115200 bauds, no HW flow control
- Line endings set to LF

For more details, see Chapter 5: Interacting with the boards.

3. After the system boot up, enter the Wi-Fi configuration (SSID, encryption mode and password) via the console. If successfully connected to the WIFI access point, some information like MAC address will be showed as *Figure 12*.





Note: After the parameters are configured, it is possible to change Wi-Fi network configuration by restarting the board and pressing User button (blue button) just after boot.

Figure 15. WiFi credential update



6.6 Application runtime

Once the WiFi connection is established, the board will connect to Aliyun IoT platform.

Figure 16. Device connect to Aliyun IoT platform



The application will publish and subscribe to accelerometer, gyroscope, magnetometer, pressure, humidity, temperature sensor data from X-NUCLEO-IKS01A2 sensor expansion board and STM32L476RG internal temperature sensor data.

User can push the user button (blue button) to toggle user LED (LD2) on Nucleo board, the desired LED state will be published to/subscribed from the cloud.

Figure 17. Device to cloud message

C COM62 - Tera Term VT	- 8 💌
Eile Edit Setup Control Window Help	
)) (Length: 60)	<u>^</u>
Press the liser button (Rive) to publish LED desired value on the /a1rHcreEMG8/iotkit-pode-1/data tonic	
packet-id=476, publish topic msg={ "state": { "remported": { "temperature": 30, } } }publish success, packet-id=476Topic: '/a1rHcreEMGA/iotkit-node=1/data' (Length: 31)Payload: '{ "state": {	
"reported": { "temperature": 30, } } (Length: 60)	
Press the User button (Blue) to publish LED desired value on the /a1rHcreEMGA/iotkit-node-1/data topic	
packet-id=477, publish topic wsg={ "state"; { "reported"; { "temperature": 30, }]]]]]]]]]]]]]	
} ³ (Length: 60) 榆皖明平台 - Google Chrome	

The sensor data and LED status are also visible on the Aliyun IoT platform console

Figure 18. Aliyun IoT platform console – device status

C PERSON P PE	<u>व</u> 🛦 आगा () कह कर प्रान्धके आग
Note // 2004/28 + 48979*1_4284/TAGE 829/8 PARE PARE Contract PARE Contract PARE Contract PARE Contract Participation Contract Participation Contract Participation Contract Participation Participation Participation	X:1.40288
	R:1 #2世世
Filling Edward	
17日(金額) 17日(金額)	10tasCU28.0002343497
2018/07/301446:21 idtit-mode-1 online, clientip=18312.56.18	18230
2018/07/3014/39:17 iotkit-mode-1 office last-brief/ime-153292577314	MUD: Keepalive timeout after 120sec. ip:183.12.66.18
2018/07/301432:09 induit-node-1 office LastActive Time: 152932163564	MR30 : Keepalive timeout after 120sec. ip:183.12.66.18
2018/07/30 142915 iddit-mode-1 online.clentlp=183.12.66.18	107.00
	共有5条 〈上一页 1 下

C 🔒 Secure https	://iot.co	nsole.aliyun.com/product/productDetail/a1rHcreEf	//GA/regior/cn-shanghai				2 ()		
建拉制台 产品与制	895 -	───────────────			18歳 Q 単 週用 1	5单 备室 企业 支持与服务	箭体中文		
物联网平台		ProductKey : s1rHcreEMGA : ProductSecret : *****			设备数:1 即往管理				
◎局管理		产品信息 消息通信 服务端订货	日志服务						
2备管理		日本服务 Backacare, weine-acommentation							
2次管理		2955206 1558096 T558096							
£93月1年 ←93月25									
(14463)		Will Advective 1/24/27 V 2015-07-02 150-018 - 2015-07-02 155-018 🗎 🗞							
"扇文档		TEPAR ·							
		日生间	MessageID	deviceName	内容(全部)	状态以及原因分析			
		2018/07/30 14:54:19	1023824091905286144	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	1870			
		2018/07/30 14:54:17	1023824083202109440	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	成功			
		2018/07/30 14:54:15	1023824074557640704	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	מגאו			
		2018/07/30 14:54:13	1023824065787351040	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	成功			
		2018/07/30 14:54:11	1023824057079967744	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/alrHcreEMGA/iotk	HIID			
		2018/07/30 14:54:09	1023824048464867329	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	成功			
		2018/07/30 14:54:07	1023824039673614336	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic;/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	HIDD			
		2018/07/30 14:54:05	1023824030962049024	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	成功			
		2018/07/30 14:54:03	1023824022250467328	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/alrHcreEMGA/iotk	nRTh			
		2018/07/30 14:54:01	1023824013568249856	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMGA/iotk	18230			

Figure 19. Aliyun IoT platform console – upstream data

Figure 20. Aliyun IoT platform console – downstream data

Secure https://	/iot.console.aliyun.com/product/productDetail/a1rH	tcrecMGA/region/cn-shanghai			4 ·			
建控制台 产品与服务	务 👻 📁 华东2(上海) 👻			秋末 Q 🖡	费用 工单 备室 企业 支持与服务 简体中文			
物联网平台	ProductKey : alrHcreEMGA 199	ProductSecret : ******* Bin						
*8 8 2	产品信息 消息通信 服务级	約100 日志服务						
2.备管理	日志服务 日本以本文展示、評価的中本文字解析							
立物管理								
RNEIW	PACTORNAL TATIONS IN THE	最新行为分析 上行周期分析 NH周期分析						
○展服务	諸級入DoviceName 2小昭 ~	11 € A DoviceName 11 9 V 2018 07 30 13 5418 · 2018 07 30 14 5418 ◎ 82 8						
*四文档	ill組入Messageld 全部状态 ~							
	B寸(印]	MessageID	deviceName	内容(全部)	状态以及原因分析			
	2018/07/30 14:54:19	1023824091905286144	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/alrHcreEMG	A/iotk AED			
	2018/07/30 14:54:20	1023824091905286144	iotkit-node-1	get pubAck msg from device, ackMsgI	d=279 成功			
	2018/07/30 14:54:18	1023824083202109440	iotkit-node-1	get pubAck msg from device, ackMsgl	d=271 583b			
	2018/07/30 14:54:17	1023824083202109440	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMG	A/iotk (RD)			
	2018/07/30 14:54:15	1023824074557640704	iotkit-node-1	get pubAck msg from device, ackMsgI	d=265 成功			
	2018/07/30 14:54:15	1023824074557640704	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/alrHcreEMC	A/iotk //EDJ			
	2018/07/30 14:54:13	1023824065787351040	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEM0	A/iotk 成功			
	2018/07/30 14:54:13	1023824065787351040	iotkit-node-1	get pubAck msg from device, ackMsgl	d=249 50b			
	2018/07/30 14:54:11	1023824057079967744	iotkit-node-1	Publish message to topic:/a1rHcreEMG	A/iotk 1830			
	2018/07/30 14:54:11	1023824057079967744	iotkit-node-1	get pubAck msg from device, ackMsgI	d=241 成功			

7 Frequently asked questions

Q: Why do I get this pop-up (refer to *Figure 21*) when I open the project with IAR[™]?

Figure 21. Pop-up when the IAR™ IDE version is not compatible with the one used for I-CUBE-ALIYUN



A: It is very likely that the IAR[™] IDE version is older than the one used to develop the package (refer to the release note available in the package root folder for the IDE versions supported), hence the compatibility is not ensured. In this case, the IAR[™] IDE version needs to be updated.

Q: My device does not connect to the Wi-Fi[®] access point. How shall I proceed?

A: Make sure that another device can connect to the Wi-Fi[®] access point. If it can, enter the Wi-Fi[®] credentials by pressing the user button (blue) up to two seconds after board reset.

Q: How shall I modify my application to publish other messages?

A: Update the function prepare_mqtt_payload() is needed in the file sensor_data.c which is located at "\Projects\STM32L476RG-Nucleo\Src".

8 Revision history

Table 2. Document revision history

Date	Revision	Changes	
15-Oct-2018	1	Initial release.	